
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN 
that the Regular Meeting of the Aviation Advisory Commission 

    will be held on: 

Wednesday  July 10, 2024  6:30 P.M. 

DEPARTMENT OF AIRPORTS 
ADMINISTRATION OFFICE 

CONFERENCE ROOM 
555 AIRPORT WAY, SUITE B 

  CAMARILLO, CA 

Public Participation Options and Instructions: 

1. Attend in-person at the address listed above.

2. You may observe the meeting via the Department of Airports YouTube channel
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC4jLWASMGn4wTrEPdT8BOTQ?view_as=subscriber

3. Participate and provide public comment via Zoom:

WEBINAR:
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88323176798?pwd=bB7hIFp6Hiz8QPKZWDuuB2pDKRu1L9.1
TELEPHONE: 1-669-444-9171
WEBINAR ID: 883 2317 6798
WEBINAR PASSCODE: 092897

Click on the link above and enter your name so we may call on you when it is your turn to
speak. Members of the public who wish to comment should use the “Raise Hand” function
in Zoom when the Chair of the Commission calls for public comment. The secretary will call
your name when it is your turn to speak. You will be prompted to unmute your microphone.
Unmute and begin speaking; start by stating your name.

If joining by telephone, press star (*) then 9 on their touch-tone phone when the Chair of
the Commission calls for public comment. The secretary will call the last 4 digits of your
phone number when it is your turn to speak. You will be prompted to unmute your phone.
Unmute and begin speaking; start by stating your name.

Public members will have 3 minutes to speak on an agenda item. Please ensure that all
background noise is muted (TV, radio, etc.).

1

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC4jLWASMGn4wTrEPdT8BOTQ?view_as=subscriber
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88323176798?pwd=bB7hIFp6Hiz8QPKZWDuuB2pDKRu1L9.1


                    
 

4. Email or Mail Public Comment in Advance of the Meeting: 
 

If you wish to make a written comment on a specific agenda item by email or mail, please 
submit your comment by 12:00 p.m. on the day prior to the meeting. Your written comment 
will be distributed to Commission members and made part of the permanent meeting 
record. Written comments will be made available to the public and can be viewed online at 
vcairports.org/meeting-archives or in person at the Airport Administration Office located at 
555 Airport Way, Suite B, Camarillo, CA 93010.  
 
Public comments submitted in writing are public record and subject to disclosure. An 
unredacted version is made available when records are requested by a Public Records Act 
request. Please do not submit personal contact information you do not want to be made 
public.  
 
Comments submitted by email can be sent to airportmeetings@ventura.org. In the Subject 
Line of the email please indicate “AAC Meeting Comment” and the Agenda item number 
on which you are commenting (e.g., AAC Meeting Comment – Agenda Item No. 5) then 
proceed with your comment in the body of the e-mail.  
 
Comments submitted by mail can be sent to 555 Airport Way, Ste. B, Camarillo, CA 93010, 
Attention: Denise Arreola.  In the Subject Line of the correspondence please indicate “AAC 
Meeting Comment” and the Agenda item number on which you are commenting (e.g., 
AAC Meeting Comment – Agenda Item No. 5) then proceed with your comment in the body 
of the correspondence.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2

mailto:airportmeetings@ventura.org


                    
 

AGENDA 
                 

1. CALL to ORDER and PLEDGE of ALLEGIANCE 
 
2. ROLL CALL  
 
3. AGENDA REVIEW  
 
4. APPROVAL of MINUTES – June 12, 2024  

  
5. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD  
 
Airport related comments will be limited to a maximum of three minutes per item. The 
public comment period is reserved for issues NOT on the agenda.  
 
In-Person Public Comment: 
Speakers must fill out a speaker card and submit it to the secretary before the end of the public 
comment period.  
 
Speaker cards for issues listed on the agenda must be presented before the item is up for 
consideration. Speakers will be called when the item is presented.  
 
Zoom Public Comment: 
Speakers should press the raise hand button, or if joining by telephone, press star (*) then 9 
to be added to the speaker queue when the Chair of the Commission calls for public comment. 
 
Email or Mail Public Comment: 
If you wish to make a written comment on a specific agenda item by email or mail, please 
submit your comment by 12:00 p.m. on the day prior to the meeting. Your written comment will 
be distributed to Commission members and made part of the permanent meeting record. 
Written comments will be made available to the public and can be viewed online at 
vcairports.org/meeting-archives or in person at the Airport Administration Office located at 555 
Airport Way, Suite B, Camarillo, CA 93010.  

 
Public comments submitted in writing are public record and subject to disclosure. An 
unredacted version is made available when records are requested by a Public Records Act 
request. Please do not submit personal contact information you do not want to be made public.
  
6. NEW BUSINESS 
 
A. Subject:   Receive and File a Monthly Staff Update from Communications and 

Engagement Manager Regarding Ventura County Airports 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Receive and file a monthly staff update from Communications and Engagement Manager 
Regarding Ventura County Airports. 
  
 
 

3

Pages 7-14

Pages 15-16



                    
 

B. Subject:   Receive and File Staff Update Regarding Video Surveillance and Access 
Control System Installation at Camarillo and Oxnard Airports 

 
Recommendation: 
 
Receive and file staff update regarding the installation of a new video surveillance and access 
control system at Camarillo and Oxnard Airports. 
 
C. Subject:  Support Recommendation by the Director of Airports to Expedite the 

Review of the Camarillo Airport Part 150 Noise Study Flight Path Alternative 
Analysis 

 
Recommendation: 
 
Staff requests that your Commission/Authorities support the Director of Airports 
recommendation to expedite the review of the Camarillo Airport flight path alternative analysis. 
 
D. Subject: Approval of, and Authorization for the Director of Airports or His Designee 

to Sign, Amendment No. 2 to the Consulting Services Contract for the 
Camarillo Airport - Airport Layout Plan Update with Coffman Associates, 
Inc., Increasing the Total Amount of the Contract by $126,759 to $812,791, 
and Increasing the Airport's Cost Share of the Contract from $333,573 to 
$460,332 

 
Recommendation: 
 
Staff requests that your Commission/Authorities recommend that the Board of Supervisors 
(Board): 
 
Approve, and authorize the Director of Airports or his designee to sign, Amendment No. 2 to 
the Consulting Services Contract for the Camarillo Airport - Airport Layout Plan Update with 
Coffman Associates, Inc., increasing the total amount of the contract by $126,759 to $812,791, 
and increasing the Airport's cost share of the contract from $333,573 to $460,332 (Exhibit 1). 
  
E. Subject:  Receive and File a Presentation on the Wings Over Camarillo Air Show at 

Camarillo Airport 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Receive and file a presentation on the Wings Over Camarillo Air Show taking place on August 

17th and 18th, 2024, at Camarillo Airport. 

7. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
8.     REPORTS  
 
Report items listed below are presented to the Aviation Advisory Commission for 
information only, at this time. The report items require no action or are not ready for the 
Commission’s consideration. The Commission may refer these items to the Department 
of Airports for investigation and report back on a future agenda.   
 

4

Pages 17-18

Pages 19-20

Pages 21-89

Page 90

Pages 91-111



                    
 

 

Monthly Activity Report – May 2024 

Monthly Noise Complaints – May 2024 

Consultant Reports (Coffman Associates) – May 2024 

Consultant Reports (Woolpert – Camarillo Airport) – May 2024 

Consultant Reports (Woolpert – Oxnard Airport) – May 2024 

Consultant Reports (Mead & Hunt) – June 2024 

Airport Tenant Projects – July 2024 

Project Status Report – June 2024 

Meeting Calendars – 2024 

 
9. CORRESPONDENCE  
 
Correspondence items listed below are presented to the Aviation Advisory Commission 
for information only, at this time. The correspondence items require no action or are not 
ready for the Commission’s consideration. The Commission may refer these items to 
the Department of Airports for investigation and report back on a future agenda. 
 
Ventura County Star article dated June 3, 2024, re: Local events honor D-Day’s 80th 
anniversary 
 
Letter from Madeline Herrle, Lease Manager, to Mary Otten, Pleasant Valley Parks and 
Recreation District General Manager dated June 13, 2024, re: Camarillo – Airport Business 
Park 
 
Department of Airports News dated June 17, 2024, re: Final Camarillo Airport – Airport Layout 
Plan Document Now Available 
 
Department of Airports News dated June 21, 2024, re: Update on Stockpile Soil at Oxnard 
Airport 
 
10.  COMMISSION COMMENTS – Comments by Commission members on matters deemed 
appropriate. 
 
11.  ADJOURNMENT  
 
The next regular Commission meeting will be on Wednesday, August 7, 2024, at 6:30 p.m. 
in the Department of Airports Administration Office Conference Room, 555 Airport Way, Suite 
B, Camarillo, California. 
 
 
 
 
 

IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT, IF YOU NEED 
SPECIAL ASSISTANCE TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS MEETING, PLEASE CONTACT DENISE 
ARREOLA (805) 388-4372. NOTIFICATION 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THE MEETING WILL 
ENABLE THE DEPARTMENT OF AIRPORTS TO MAKE REASONABLE ARRANGEMENTS 
TO ENSURE ACCESSIBILITY TO THIS MEETING. 

5

Pages 112-117



                    
 

 
 

 
 

Webinar Instructions 
 

Public link to Zoom webinar:  
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88323176798?pwd=bB7hIFp6Hiz8QPKZWDuuB2pDKRu1L9.1    

 
Webinar ID:  883 2317 6798 
Passcode:  092897 

    Phone Numbers: 1-669-444-9171 
           
 

Cell Phone or Computer with Audio (Microphone) Feature:  Click on the link above and enter 
passcode.  Enter your name so we may call on you when it is your turn to speak.   
 
The Chairperson will ask if anyone wishes to speak to the item.  At that time, raise your hand by 
clicking the Raise Hand button.  Follow the instructions below regarding Speaking. 
 
Computer without Audio (Microphone) Feature:  Click on the link above and enter passcode.  
This will allow you to view and listen to the meeting.  In order to speak, follow the instructions below 
for Telephone.  
 
Telephone:  You may observe the meeting via the Department of Airports YouTube channel. If you 
are interested in speaking to an item, you can call into one of the phone lines listed above, and 
when prompted enter the Webinar ID and Passcode shown above.  Once in the meeting, you will 
be listening to the meeting through your phone handset.   
 
The Chairperson will ask if anyone wishes to speak to the item.  At that time, raise your hand by 
dialing *9.  Follow the instructions below regarding Speaking. 
 

Speaking 
When it is your turn to speak, the Chairperson will call your name or the last 4 digits of your phone 
number if you are calling from a phone, and you will have 3 minutes to speak.  Please ensure that 
all background noise is muted (TV, radio, etc.).  You will be prompted to unmute your 
microphone/phone.  Unmute and begin speaking; start by stating your name. 

The timer on the screen will count down your 3 minutes.  The timer starts green indicating you have 
3 minutes; when the time hits 1 minute remaining, the timer will change to yellow; when the 3 
minutes have elapsed, the timer will turn red.  At that time, your microphone will be muted and we 
will move onto the next speaker.  If you called in on one of the phone lines listed above, you will 
not be able to see the timer.  Instead, you will be prompted when the 3 minutes has begun; when 
the time hits 1 minute remaining; when the 3 minutes have elapsed. 

 

   

6

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88323176798?pwd=bB7hIFp6Hiz8QPKZWDuuB2pDKRu1L9.1


 

                              
AVIATION ADVISORY COMMISSION 

 

MINUTES 
 

June 12, 2024 
 

  
1.  CALL to ORDER and PLEDGE of ALLEGIANCE  

Chair, Maggie Bird, called the meeting to order at 6:32 p.m. and Vice Chair John Corneau 
led the pledge of allegiance.   
 

 2. ROLL CALL 

PRESENT 
Maggie Bird 
Adriana Van der Graaf 
Jerrold Abramson 
Matthew Johnston  
John Corneau 
Sean Colvin 
 
 
Excused (E) 
Late (L) 
Absent (A) 
 
AIRPORT STAFF 
Keith Freitas, Director of Airports 
Dave Nafie, Deputy Director 
Erin Powers, Projects Administrator  
Jannette Jauregui, Communications and 
Engagement Manager 
Ana Castro, Program Administrator  

ABSENT     
Steve Weiss (E) 
James Flickinger (E) 
Steve Tannehill (E) 
Shane Warburton (E) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7



 
 
 
3. AGENDA REVIEW  
 
No changes to the agenda.    
 

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – May 8, 2024 
                                               
Action:   Commissioner Jerrold Abramson moved to approve the May 8, 2024, 
minutes and Commissioner Matthew Johnston seconded the motion. All members 
voted and the motion passed unanimously 6-0. 
 
5.  PUBLIC COMMENT - Citizens wishing to speak to the Commission on an airport 

related item must fill out a speaker card and submit it to the secretary. Comments will 
be limited to a maximum of three minutes per item. 

 
  Speaker cards for issues NOT on the agenda must be submitted before the end of 

the public comment period.  
 

 Speaker cards for issues listed on the agenda must be presented before the item is 
up for consideration. Speakers will be called when the item is presented. 

 
No public comment made. 
 
6. NEW BUSINESS 
 
A. Subject: Receive and File a Monthly Staff Update from Communications and 

Engagement Manager Regarding Ventura County Airports 
   
Recommendation: 
  
Receive and file a monthly staff update from Communications and Engagement Manager 
Regarding Ventura County Airports. 
 
Jannette Jauregui, Communications and Engagement Manager, presented three items. 
First, a summary of the annual VC Fly Friendly Fly-In event held on May 22, 2024. The 
second item highlighted the Commemorative Air Force Museum and its involvement at the 
Camarillo Airport. Finally, the segment concluded with a feature story highlighting the life 
and aviation career of former Oxnard Airport Authority public member, Dr. Eugene Fussell.   
 
Action: Without motion, the Commission receives the staff update from 
Communications and Engagement Manager regarding Ventura County Airports.   
 
 

8



 
 
B. Subject: Authorization for the Director of Airports or His Designee to Award 

Four (4) Annual Consulting Services Contracts for Fiscal Year 2024-
2025 to Assist the Department of Airports with the Following 
Services:  Engineering, Environmental Review, Environmental 
Planning, Grant Support Administration, Planning, Design Review 
Services, Specification Writing, Disadvantage Business Enterprise 
Support, Cost Engineering/Estimating Inspection, Materials Testing, 
Surveying, Construction Management, Independent Fee Estimation 
and to Issue Work Orders Against These Contracts 

Recommendations: 
 
Staff requests that your Commission/Authorities recommend that the Board of Supervisors 
(Board): 
 
1. Authorize the Director of Airports, or his designee, to award annual 

consulting-services contracts for fiscal year 2024-2025 to the consultants listed in the 
Annual Consultant Services Contracts Summary (Exhibit 1) using a contract form 
negotiated in compliance with the County of Ventura Public Works Agency Project 
Processing Procedures Manual (an exemplar contract form is attached as Exhibit 2); 
final contract language is subject to review and approval as to form by County 
Counsel; and 

2. Authorize the Director of Airports, or his designee, to issue work orders against such 
contracts for up to $35,000 each project for planning of construction projects not yet 
approved by your Board, and for up to $200,000 each work order for other services. 

 
Erin Powers, Projects Administrator, presented this item for its recommended approval by 
the Board of Supervisors. The presentation included a summation of the four consultant 
contracts up for award and approval.  
 
Action: Commissioner Jerrold Abramson moved to approve the staff’s 
recommendations and Vice Chair John Corneau seconded the motion to authorize 
the Director of Airports or his designee to award annual consulting-services 
contracts for fiscal year 2024-25; and to issue work orders against such contracts 
for up the $35,000 each project for planning of construction projects not yet 
approved by your board; and for up to $200,000 each work order for other services. 
All members voted and the motion passed unanimously 6-0. 
 
C. Subject: Approval of, and Authorization for the Director of Airports or His 

Designee to Sign, Contract Amendments to Extend the Contract 
Expiration Dates of Four (4) Contracts through June 30, 2025; No 
Change in Total Cost of Contracts  

 
 

9



 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Staff requests that your Commission/Authorities recommend that the Board of Supervisors 
(Board): 
 
Approval of, and authorization for the Director of Airports or his designee to sign, contract 
amendments to extend the contract expiration dates of four contracts through June 30, 
2025 (Exhibits 1-4).  No change in total cost of contracts. 
 

VENDOR CONTRACT  
NO. 

CONTRACT TITLE CONTRACT 
EXPIRATION 

 

REVISED 
CONTRACT 
EXPIRATION 

CHANGE IN 
TOTAL 

CONTRACT 
COST 

Jviation,  
a Woolpert 
Company 

AEA  
21-07 

Oxnard Airport – 
Construction 

Administration Services 
for RWY 7-25, Connector 

Taxiways and Parallel 
Taxiway Pavement 

Reconstruction 

6/30/2022 6/30/25 $0 

Coffman 
Associates 

AEA  
22-06 

Camarillo Airport – Part 
150 Noise Compatibility 

Study  

10/12/2024 6/30/25 $0 

Coffman 
Associates 

AEA  
22-07 

Oxnard Airport – Part 150 
Noise Compatibility Study 

10/12/2024 6/30/25 $0 

Jviation,  
a Woolpert 
Company 

AEA 
23-05 

Oxnard Airport – 
Repackage and 

Construction Phasing 
Design for the 

Reconstruction of 
Taxiway F 

12/31/2023 6/30/25 $0 

  
Erin Powers, Projects Administrator, presented this item for its recommended approval by 
the Board of Supervisors. The presentation explained the Department’s necessity of 
expiration date extensions of the four contracts.  
 
Action: Commissioner Matthew Johnston moved to approve staff’s 
recommendation and Commissioner Adriana Van der Graaf seconded the motion to 
approve and authorize the Director of Airports or his designee to sign, contract 
amendments to extend the contract expiration dates of four contracts through June 
30, 2025, with no change in total cost of contracts. All members voted and the 
motion passed unanimously 6-0. 
 

10



 
 
D. Subject: Approval of, and Authorization for the Director of Airports or His 

Designee to Sign, Contract Change Order No. 1 in the Amount of 
$173,284 with Security Paving Company, Inc. for the Reconstruction of 
Taxiway F (renamed A) at Oxnard Airport, Raising the Total Contract 
Amount from $17,365,009.50 to a Total Amount of $17,538,293.50; 
Project Specification DOA 23-03 and Project No. OXR-150 

 
Recommendation: 
 
Staff requests that your Commission/Authorities recommend that the Board of Supervisors 
(Board): 

Approve and authorize the Director of Airports or his designee to sign, Contract Change 
Order No. 1 (Exhibit 1) in the amount of $173,284 with Security Paving Company, Inc. for 
the reconstruction of Taxiway F (renamed A) at Oxnard Airport, raising the total contract 
amount from $17,365,009.50 to a total amount of $17,538,293.50. 

Erin Powers, Projects Administrator, presented this item for its recommended approval by 
the Board of Supervisors. The presentation explained the Department’s request for 
contract change order no. 1 for the reconstruction at Taxiway F (renamed A) and for the 
work to be completed at the reconstruction site. 

Action: Commissioner Jerrold Abramson moved to approve staff’s 
recommendation and Vice Chair John Corneau seconded the motion to approve and 
authorize the Director of Airports or his designee to sign, Contract Change Order 
No. 1 in the amount of $173,284 with Security Paving Company, Inc. for the 
reconstruction of Taxiway F (renamed A) at Oxnard Airport, raising the total contract 
amount from $17,365,009.50 to a total amount of $17,538,293.50. All members voted 
and the motion passed unanimously 6-0. 

7. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

The Oxnard Airport Taxiway A reconstruction project which started on May 9, 2024, is on 
target for completion. Phase one is complete, and phase two began on June 9, 2024. The 
three-month reconstruction project is scheduled to conclude on or around July 31, 2024. 
 
The Department of Airport Maintenance and Operations staff are congratulated and 
recognized for a job well done, and their outstanding work this year. Earlier this year, both 
Oxnard and Camarillo Airports passed their annual Caltrans inspection with zero 
discrepancies. More recently, Oxnard Airport, that maintains their Part 139 Certification, 
passed their annual FAA inspection. 
 
June 3rd and 4th, 2024 the Department held its third public meeting on the Part 150 Noise 
Study for Oxnard and Camarillo Airports. The Camarillo public meeting was held at the 
Ventura County Office of Education with approximately 71 people in attendance. The 
Oxnard public meeting was held at the Courtyard Marriot – Oxnard with approximately 21 

11



 
 
people in attendance. The focus of the third public meeting(s) served as a listening session 
for the community. The Department welcomed ideas from the community that they would 
like us to consider regarding noise mitigation. The second phase, known as the Noise 
Compatibility Program (“NCP”), will serve as what noise mitigation measures, both the 
Department and the community want to see at the end of the study. The last of these public 
meetings will be held in early October. The final noise study and its complete draft will 
consider the noise study report, public meetings and comments, letters from stakeholders, 
the City of Camarillo and Oxnard, specifically. 
 
The Department wrapped up the final phase of its Strategic Plan. We hope to display the 
final posters in the next 30-60 days. The objective of the posters is to share the hard work 
of Airport staff completed in the last six months.   
 
Director’s Report was received and filed. 
 
8. REPORTS  
 
Report items listed below are presented to the Aviation Advisory Commission for 
information only, at this time. The report items require no action or are not ready for 
the Commission’s consideration. The Commission may refer these items to the 
Department of Airports for investigation and report back on a future agenda.   
 

Monthly Activity Report – March – April 2024 
Monthly Noise Complaints – March – April 2024 
Consultant Reports (Coffman Associates) – March - April 2024 
Consultant Reports (Woolpert – Camarillo Airport) – March – April 2024 
Consultant Reports (Woolpert – Oxnard Airport) – March – April 2024 
Consultant Reports (Mead & Hunt) – May 2024 
Airport Tenant Projects – May 2024 
Project Status Report – May 2024 
Financial Statements – Third and Fourth Quarter 
Meeting Calendars – 2024 
 

Reports were received and filed. 
 
9. CORRESPONDENCE  
 
Correspondence items listed below are presented to the Aviation Advisory 
Commission for information only, at this time. The correspondence items require 
no action or are not ready for the Commission’s consideration. The Commission 
may refer these items to the Department of Airports for investigation and report 
back on a future agenda.  
 
Ventura County Star article dated April 9, 2024, re: Camarillo Airport noise study, planning 
document topics for City Council meeting 
 

12



 
 
Department of Airports Request for Proposals dated April 11, 2024, Selection Process of 
a Master Developer for Commercial Development of Approximately 5.1 Acres at the 
Oxnard Airport 
 
Letter from Andrea Ozdy, Deputy Executive Officer of Ventura Local Agency Formation 
Commission dated April 12, 2024, re: Camarillo Airport Layout Plan 
 
City of Camarillo News Release dated April 15, 2024, re: City Council Confirms 
Commitment to Preserving Camarillo’s Quality of Life During Update on Camarillo Airport 
 
Department of Airports News dated April 18, 2024, re: SoCal Gas Survey Work Being 
Conducted April 22 – April 27 
 
Camarillo Acorn article dated April 20, 2024, re: Answers from an airport attorney 
 
Department of Airports Project Schedule Update dated April 23, 2024, re: Oxnard Airport 
Taxiway A (formerly Taxiway F) Reconstruction Project 
 
Ventura County Star article dated April 23, 2024, re: Two car dealerships proposed for 
Camarillo near airport  
 
Letter from City of Camarillo Manager, Greg Ramirez, dated May 10, 2024, re: Camarillo 
Airport Layout Plan Update 
 
Department of Airports News dated May 16, 2024, re: Community Update Regarding 
Taxiway A Reconstruction Project 
 
Ventura County Star article dated May 16, 2024, re: Ventura County Fire headquarters 
moves to Thousand Oaks. Here’s what to know 
 
Department of Airports E-Mail Announcement from Communications and Engagement 
Manager, Jannette Jauregui, dated May 17, 2024, re: Ventura County Department of 
Airports: Listening Sessions Now Scheduled for Part 150 Noise Compatibility Studies 
 
Department of Airports Project Schedule Update dated May 21, 2024, re: Oxnard Airport 
Taxiway A (formerly Taxiway F) Reconstruction Project 
 
Letter from City of Camarillo Mayor, Tony Trembley, dated May 22, 2024, re: Part 150 
Noise Compatibility Study 
 
Department of Airports News dated May 27, 2024, re: Commemorative Air Force Museum 
Preserves History of Camarillo’s Former Air Force Base 
 
Department of Airports News dated June 3, 2024, re: Veteran, Doctor, Pilot: Honoring Dr. 
Eugene Fussell 
 
Correspondence was received and filed.  
 
 

13



 
 
10.  COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
Commissioner Adriana Van der Graaf shares community concerns regarding the air traffic 
noise and travel coming from the Point Mugu Naval Base. Communications and 
Engagement Manager, Jannette Jauregui, will gladly share this information with the Point 
Mugu Naval Base Public Information Officer. Director Freitas further states the Department 
of Airports shares Naval Base communication with the public as it comes in. 
 
11.  ADJOURNMENT  
 
There being no further business, a motion to adjourn the May 8, 2024, meeting of the 
Aviation Advisory Commission was made by Commissioner Matthew Johnston and all 
Commissioners voted in favor at 7:17p.m.  
 
The next regular Commission meeting is scheduled on Wednesday, July 10, 2024, at 
6:30 p.m. in the Department of Airports Administration Office Conference Room, 555 
Airport Way, Suite B, Camarillo, California. 
 
 
 
 
 
KEITH FREITAS, A.A.E., C.A.E. 
Administrative Secretary 

14



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
July 10, 2024 
 
 
Aviation Advisory Commission 
Camarillo Airport Authority 
Oxnard Airport Authority 
555 Airport Way, Suite B 
Camarillo, CA 93010 
  
 
Subject: Receive and File a Monthly Staff Update from Communications and 

Engagement Manager Regarding Ventura County Airports 
   
Recommendation: 
  
Receive and file a monthly staff update from Communications and Engagement Manager 
Regarding Ventura County Airports. 
 
Fiscal/Mandates Impact: 
 
This item is presented for information only and it does not require consideration by the 
Board of Supervisors at this time. There are no fiscal impacts associated with the 
recommended action. 
 
Discussion:  
 
The Department of Airports is continuing its work to highlight exceptional stories 
surrounding local aviation. 
 
The County of Ventura Department of Airports was established in 1976 to manage 
Camarillo Airport and Oxnard Airport. Together these Airports provide vital connections 
to the national airspace system and are home to many businesses and individual aircraft 
owners, all of whom contribute to the economic vitality of Ventura County and/or serve as 
philanthropic contributors through a variety of non-profit organizations. Such contributions 
are made without knowledge to the majority of the general public. 

National and locally based organizations such as Pilots for Paws, Angel Flight, 
LightHawk, the VC Ninety-Nines, Experimental Aircraft Association, and more are 
dedicated to serving the community in a variety of ways and are among the unsung 
heroes in local aviation. 

15



AAC/CAA/OAA 
Staff Update from Communications and Engagement Manager 
July 10, 2024 
Page 2 
  
The Department of Airports began a series highlighting these unsung heroes in 
September 2023. This series is showcased through periodic short feature stories 
designed to not only put a spotlight on those who tirelessly serve the community but to 
also help educate the community about a portion of local aviation that is often overlooked. 

July’s spotlight story focuses on the Wings Over Camarillo Air Show and its impact on 
preserving aviation history, promoting the future of aviation, and inspiring new 
generations of pilots through a variety of resources included annual donations to local 
charities.  

 
If you have any questions regarding this item, please call Jannette Jauregui at (805) 388-
4287, or me at (805) 388-4200. 
 
 
 
 
  
 
KEITH FREITAS, A.A.E., C.A.E.  
Director of Airports  
 
 
 
 
 

16



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
July 10, 2024 
 
 
Aviation Advisory Commission 
Camarillo Airport Authority 
Oxnard Airport Authority 
555 Airport Way, Suite B 
Camarillo, CA 93010 
 
Subject: Receive and File Staff Update Regarding Video Surveillance and Access 

Control System Installation at Camarillo and Oxnard Airports 
   
Recommendation: 
 
Receive and file staff update regarding the installation of a new video surveillance and 
access control system at Camarillo and Oxnard Airports.  
 
Fiscal/Mandates Impact: 
 
This item is presented for information only and it does not require consideration by the 
Board of Supervisors at this time. There are no fiscal impacts associated with the 
recommended action. 
 
Discussion: 
 
Camarillo and Oxnard Airports are undergoing a significant security upgrade with the 
installation of a new video surveillance and access control system by Convergint 
Technologies. 
 
The previous system, over 20 years old, relied on outdated network technologies. The 
new system will utilize cutting-edge technology, including modern high-resolution 
cameras, digital video recorders, and secure wireless networks. This upgrade will provide 
several benefits, including improved image quality for better identification, wider coverage 
areas for comprehensive monitoring, and a robust and secure wireless network 
infrastructure for reliable data transmission.  
 
The system installation is nearly complete, with approximately 90% of the equipment 
already in place. We anticipate full operation by August 31, 2024. To ensure a smooth 
transition, we will implement a phased changeover process. Individual gates may be 

17



AAC/CAA/OAA 
Security System Upgrades 
July 10, 2024 
Page 2 

 
taken offline briefly during this period to switch systems.  We will minimize any disruption 
to airport operations and keep the downtime to a minimum. 
 
Prior to the official commissioning of the new system, we will train Department of Airports 
staff on its operation. This training will ensure staff can fully utilize the system's 
capabilities to enhance airport security. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this item, please call me at (805) 388-4290 or Keith 
Freitas at (805) 388-4200. 

 
 
 
 
 

CASEY PULLMAN, C.M. 
Deputy Director of Airports 
 

18



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
July 10, 2024 
 
 
Aviation Advisory Commission 
Camarillo Airport Authority 
555 Airport Way, Suite B 
Camarillo, CA 93010 
  
Subject: Support Recommendation by the Director of Airports to Expedite the 

Review of the Camarillo Airport Part 150 Noise Study Flight Path 
Alternative Analysis 

   
Recommendation: 
  
Staff requests that your Commission/Authorities support the Director of Airports 
recommendation to expedite the review of the Camarillo Airport flight path alternative 
analysis. 
 
Fiscal/Mandates Impact: 
 
This item is presented for information only and it does not require consideration by the 
Board of Supervisors at this time. There are no fiscal impacts associated with the 
recommended action. However, it is expected that the ultimate financial impact will range 
between $50,000 and $100,000 to complete.   
  
Discussion:  
 
Noise Exposure Map Update. The Department of Airports is currently conducting the 
FAR Part 150 Noise Study for Camarillo Airport. Begun in the Fall of 2022, the project 
has identified an existing activity level and two future activity levels for 2027 and 2042. 
Using these projections of future activity, along with an understanding of flight paths and 
altitudes that aircraft use in the vicinity of Camarillo Airport, Coffman Associates prepared 
updated Noise Exposure Maps (NEM) using the modeling software approved by FAA for 
preparing noise contours. Contours were then overlaid onto maps depicting current land 
uses to determine whether there are incompatible uses within the 65 CNEL* contour. It is 
important to note that no noise sensitive uses are within the 65 CNEL contours for both 
the current condition (2022 activity level) and the 2027 activity level. Those NEMs are 
currently in the approval process by FAA. 
 
Noise Compatibility Plan. The other major element of the Part 150 Noise Study is the 
preparation of a Noise Compatibility Plan (NCP). This involves the identification of a range 
of alternatives that are intended to mitigate or reduce the noise exposure over noise 

19



AAC/CAA 
Staff Update Regarding CMA Part 150 – Expedite Flight Path Analysis 
July 10, 2024 
Page 2 
  
sensitive uses and control new incompatible development. When applicable, and just for 
just those noise sensitive uses that lie within the 65 CNEL contour, FAA would evaluate 
recommended alternatives and reach a determination whether the implementation of 
alternatives would be eligible for funding assistance. However, when there are no 
incompatible uses within the 65 CNEL, the study alternatives that identify new measures 
meant to reduce noise exposure are limited to working with stakeholders to identify 
voluntary mitigation strategies. And in no case would an airport be entitled to implement 
any new restrictions on aircraft activity. It is this framework that we manage the Fly 
Friendly VC program, which uses education, awareness, and voluntary adoption of flying 
techniques that will yield best results to see overall noise reduction in most cases. 
 
The Department of Airports conducted a community listening session on June 3, 2024, in 
order to capture feedback and suggestions for specific and viable alternatives that 
Coffman Associates could evaluate and potentially incorporate into the Noise 
Compatibility Plan. On the following day Coffman Associates also held meetings with 
aviation and land use professionals to gather and refine alternatives. 
 
Flight Plan Analysis. One alternative was consistently offered from each stakeholder 
group, including the Camarillo Airport Authority at their June meeting, City of Camarillo 
Mayor/City Council and through the comments of individual community members, and 
staff believes that expediting its implementation would be beneficial. This initiative is 
particularly important because more than 90% of noise complaints come from jet arrivals 
over Old Town. The initiative involves working with airspace experts and FAA airspace 
officials to examine whether aircraft approaching Camarillo Airport from the east (over 
Old Town) could use a modified track over the ground and/or a steeper approach angle. 
Staff is proposing to invite stakeholders, including a member from the Old Town 
neighborhood, to assist in interviewing qualified airspace experts and incorporating their 
recommendations on which expert or firm is preferred to conduct the analysis. Because 
the study and implementation of any changes is a lengthy process, the goal is to be 
working quickly to get a firm under contract in the next 60 days. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact Dave Nafie at (805) 388-4201 or me at (805) 
388-4200. 

 

 

 

KEITH FREITAS, A.A.E., C.A.E.  
Director of Airports 
 

20



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
July 10, 2024 
 
 
Aviation Advisory Commission 
Camarillo Airport Authority 
555 Airport Way, Suite B 
Camarillo, CA 93010 
  
Subject: Approval of, and Authorization for the Director of Airports or His 

Designee to Sign, Amendment No. 2 to the Consulting Services Contract 
for the Camarillo Airport - Airport Layout Plan Update with Coffman 
Associates, Inc., Increasing the Total Amount of the Contract by 
$126,759 to $812,791, and Increasing the Airport's Cost Share of the 
Contract from $333,573 to $460,332 

  
 

Recommendation: 

Staff requests that your Commission/Authorities recommend that the Board of 
Supervisors (Board): 
 
Approve, and authorize the Director of Airports or his designee to sign, Amendment No. 
2 to the Consulting Services Contract for the Camarillo Airport - Airport Layout Plan 
Update with Coffman Associates, Inc., increasing the total amount of the contract by 
$126,759 to $812,791, and increasing the Airport's cost share of the contract from 
$333,573 to $460,332 (Exhibit 1). 
 
Fiscal/Mandates Impact: 
 
Mandatory:     No 
Source of funding:    Federal Aviation Administration (90% of eligible items)  
Funding match required: Airport Enterprise Fund (10% plus FAA non-eligible 

items less Caltrans funding up to 4.5%)    
Impact on other departments:  None 
 
 

21



AAC/CAA 
Approval of Amendment No. 2  
Camarillo Airport - Airport Layout Plan Update  
July 10, 2024 
Page 2 
  
 
Summary of Revenue and Project Costs  

 
FY 2024/25 

 
FY 2025/26 

 

    
Revenue:  FAA (up to 90%) 
                Caltrans (up to 4.5%)   

Direct Costs 
Net Costs – Airport Enterprise Fund 

 
    $                0* 

                    0* 
$     126,759 
$     126,759 

 

 
  $                0 

               0 
  $                0 
  $                0 

 

*Note: FAA grant total for the Airport Layout Plan Update is $352,459. Remainder of 
contract costs will be paid out-of-pocket from the Airport Enterprise Fund (AEF).  
 
Current Fiscal Year Budget Projection: 
 

FY 2024-25 Budget Projection for Airports Capital Projects 
Division 5040 - Unit 5041** 

 Adopted 
Budget 

Adjusted 
Budget 

Projected 
Budget 

Estimated 
Savings/ 
(Deficit) 

Appropriations    $  7,303,393    $  7,303,393    $  7,303,393           $0 
Revenue        5,787,844        5,787,844        5,787,844             0 
Net Cost    $  1,515,449    $  1,515,449    $  1,515,449           $0 

Sufficient revenue and appropriations are available in the FY 24-25 capital budget. 
*Includes interest and capital assets. 
 
Strategic Priority: 
 
This amendment approval supports the County’s Strategic Priorities to support fiscal 
responsibility, economic vitality, reliable infrastructure, and sustainability. 
 
Discussion: 
 
On April 7, 2020, the Board authorized the Department of Airports (DOA) to enter into a 
consulting services contract with Coffman Associates, Inc., for a Master Plan Update for 
Camarillo Airport in the amount of $741,094 (Exhibit 2).  Usual components of master 
plans include significant analysis of the future role of an airport.  Though that does not 
necessarily mean the role of the airport would change, initial public meetings revealed 
great community concern that this could happen. To reassure the community this was not the 
intent of the Airport, the DOA sought to scale back the Master Plan Update and transition it to 
an Airport Layout Plan (ALP) Update which would allow the DOA to meet grant obligations 
and accomplish essential planning ahead of projects in the near-term (3-10 years), but 
not consider a change to the role of the airport. 
 
 
 

22



AAC/CAA 
Approval of Amendment No. 2  
Camarillo Airport - Airport Layout Plan Update  
July 10, 2024 
Page 3 
  
On January 24, 2023, the Board approved Amendment No. 1, which reduced the total contract 
cost from $741,094 to $686,032, allowing for this planning document transition (Exhibit 
3).  However, as the study continued forward, some of the information collected as part 
of the original master plan document was deemed too stale to be accepted by the Federal 
Aviation Administration (FAA).  Therefore, the consultant needed to essentially start over 
and refresh certain data elements.  Amendment No. 2 requests an increase of $126,759 
to the contract to cover this action.   
 
Proposed Amendment No. 2 will increase the amended contract price from $686,032 to 
a total amount of $812,791.  The FAA grant total for the Airport Layout Plan Update is 
$352,459.  Therefore, the remainder of contract costs exceeding the grant will be paid 
out-of-pocket from the Airport Enterprise Fund (AEF). The AEF has sufficient 
appropriations to cover the cost of the contract. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this item, please call Erin Powers at (805) 388-4205, 
or me at (805) 388-4200. 
 
 
  
 
 
 
KEITH FREITAS, A.A.E., C.A.E.  
Director of Airports  
 
Attachments: 
 
Exhibit 1 – Amendment No. 2 
Exhibit 2 – Contract 
Exhibit 3 – Amendment No. 1 
 
 
 
 

23



CONSULTING SERVICES CONTRACT: AEA 20-08 

AMENDMENT of CONTRACT NO. 2 

Camarillo Airport – AIRPORT LAYOUT PLAN UPDATE 

The County of Ventura (County), and Coffman Associates, Inc., (Consultant) enter into this agreement 

(Amendment No. 2) to amend the existing consulting services contract between them, entered into on September 

24, 2020, and first amended on February 9, 2023 (Amendment No.1), for planning services to update the airport 

layout plan (Contract). 

County and Consultant desire to amend the terms of said existing Contract to allow for the additional costs incurred 

to refresh data needed to complete the airport layout plan update. 

NOW THEREFORE, County and Consultant agree as follows: 

1. All provisions of the existing Contract and Amendment No. 1 remain in full force and effect except as

expressly modified by this Amendment.

2. The following changes are made to the Contract:

a. EXHIBIT B, TIME SCHEDULE, the first paragraph is deleted and replaced in its entirety with the

following paragraph:

The CONSULTANT shall complete all work as described in Exhibit A Scope of Services by
December 31, 2024.

b. EXHIBIT C, FEES and PAYMENT, Paragraph I.A is deleted and replaced in its entirety with the following

paragraph:

A. The COUNTY shall compensate CONSULTANT at the Not-to-Exceed amount of eight hundred
twelve thousand seven hundred ninety-one dollars ($812,791) to complete all services as
detailed in Exhibit A Scope of Services.

c. EXHIBIT C, FEES and PAYMENT, Paragraph II.A is deleted and replaced in its entirety with the following

paragraph:

A. Progress payments for fees due under Paragraph 1.A above will be made monthly on a presentation of an
invoice for work actually completed on authorized Exhibit A Scope of Services. Payments will be processed
within thirty (30) days of receipt of invoice by the Department of Airports or ten (10) business days from
receipt of the Department of Airport's approved invoice by the Auditor-Controller's office.

Exhibit 1 24



______________ 

 

 

 
3. By this Amendment, the current Contract amount of six hundred eighty-six thousand thirty-two dollars 

($686,032) is increased by one hundred twenty-six thousand seven hundred fifty-nine dollars ($126,759), to a 

total of eight hundred twelve thousand seven hundred ninety-one dollars ($812,791). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

CONSULTANT: COFFMAN ASSOCIATES, INC. Taxpayer No.: 43-1201450  
 

 
Dated:      

 

   

Print Name and Title 
 

 
Dated: _    

 
 

Print Name and Title 

COUNTY: County of Ventura 

 
 

Dated:     

Keith Freitas Director of Airports 

 

 

 
CONSULTING SERVICES CONTRACT: AEA 20-08 

AMENDMENT of CONTRACT NO. 2 
Camarillo Airport – MASTER PLAN UPDATE 

25



Exhibit 2 26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



Exhibit 3 76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
July 10, 2024 
  
 
Aviation Advisory Commission 
Camarillo Airport Authority  
555 Airport Way, Suite B 
Camarillo, CA 93010 
  
Subject: Receive and File a Presentation on the Wings Over Camarillo Air Show 

at Camarillo Airport    
   
Recommendation: 
 
Receive and file a presentation on the Wings Over Camarillo Air Show taking place on 
August 17th and 18th, 2024, at Camarillo Airport. 

 
Discussion: 
 
The Camarillo Wings Association (CWA) will be holding their annual Wings Over 
Camarillo Air Show at Camarillo Airport. The speaker will be presenting this item and will 
also discuss the work done to reduce noise to the animal shelter and community.  
 
The weekend event will continue, 43rd year, to focus on preserving aviation history, 
remembering our Veterans, inspiring youth to explore aviation, showcase unique piloting 
skills, and share and educate the community on the value and services of the Ventura 
County Airports (Camarillo and Oxnard). Activities this year will once again include air 
show performances and static displays from aerobatic, historic, and current military 
aircrafts, helicopters, experimental, general aviation, search and rescue and 
pyrotechnics. There will also be a STEM pavilion, commemorative Air Force Museum, 
antique car show and parade, food, vendor booths, and much more.     
 
If you have any questions regarding this item, please call me at (805) 388-4200.  
 
 
 
 
 
KEITH FREITAS, A.A.E., C.A.E. 
Director of Airports 
 
 

90



Inventory Occupied Available Inventory Occupied Available

Hangars Hangars

Private 170 170 0 Private 79 79 0

County 160 160 0 County 66 66 0

Out of Service 16 0 0 Out of Service 6 0 0

Total 346 330 0 Total 151 145 0

Tie-downs Tie-downs

County 96 56 40 County 7 1 6

AVEX 25 18 7 Goldenwest Jet Center 15 11 4

Channel Island Aviation 35 30 5 Oxnard Jet Center 8 6 2

Visitor 35 Visitor 11

Total 191 104 52 Total 41 18 23

Aircraft Incidents:

Camarillo Oxnard Camarillo Oxnard

16,627 7,904 Current Month 5 0

14,544 5,884 Current year to date 11 3

14% 34%

74,496 38,912

65,445 31,485

14% 24%

Other:
Camarillo

0

0

25

120

28

** Includes approximate number of aircraft occupying space in both large and small hangars by agreement with lessee or licensee

Other aircraft ** (Estimate) 15

Hangar Waiting List 1

Oxnard

Airside Citations Issued 0

Landside Citations issued 21

Cards issued to transient overnight aircraft 4

Airport Operations:

Current year for the month

Last year for the month

% Change

CMA: 5/1 - Disabled A/C smoke in Cabin                                

5/3 - Bird Strike                                                                        

5/3 - Alert 1 engin roughness                                                     

5/9 - Flat tire                                                                           

5/20 - Engine Failure shutdown                                           

OXR: N/A

Current year to date

Last year to date

% Change

        MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT

Month ending May 31, 2024

Hangars and Tie-downs:

Camarillo Oxnard

91



Camarillo Noise Comment Report 

May 2024

Comments by Location Number of 
Comments 

Total Number 
of Households 

East Neighborhoods 0 0 

Midtown/Old Town 273 17 

North Neighborhoods 11 4 

Unspecified/Other 0 Unknown 

Type of Operation 

Takeoff/Departure 0 

Landing/Arrival 186 

Traffic Pattern 63 

Unspecified 35 

Type of Aircraft 

Single Engine Piston 0 

Multi-Engine Piston 0 

Turboprop 1 

Turbo Jet 248 

Helicopter 1 

Unspecified 34 

Time of Day 

12 a.m. – 5 a.m. 9 

5 a.m. – 8 a.m. 3 

8 a.m. – 6 p.m. 185 

6 p.m. – 12 a.m. 87 

Total Comments = 284 

Comment Breakdown: 

Household #1: 

106 (37%) 

Household #2: 

31 (11%) 

Household #3: 

12 (4%) 

92



Oxnard Noise Comment Report 

May 2024

 

Comments by Location Number of 
Comments 

Total Number 
of Households 

West of Victoria & South of 5th (Channel 
Islands, Oxnard Shores, Seabridge, etc.) 

162 11 

South Neighborhoods (Via Marina, etc.) 9 2 

East Neighborhoods 0 0 

North Neighborhoods 3 1 

Other/Unspecified 4 Unknown 

Type of Operation 

Takeoff/Departure 0 

Landing/Arrival 0 

Traffic Pattern 161 

Unspecified 17 

Time of Day 

12 a.m. – 5 a.m. 0 

5 a.m. – 8 a.m. 4 

8 a.m. – 6 p.m. 154 

6 p.m. – 12 a.m. 10 

Type of Aircraft 

Single Engine Piston 21 

Multi-Engine Piston 0 

Turboprop 0 

Turbo Jet 1 

Helicopter 5 

Unspecified 151 

Total Comments = 178 

Comment Breakdown: 

Household #1: 

67 (38%) 

Household #2: 

66 (37%) 

Household #3: 

8 (4%) 

93



MAY 2024 

CAMARILLO AIRPORT – AIRPORT LAYOUT PLAN UPDATE/NARRATIVE REPORT 
Status Update:  

• General public comment/review period associated with the Draft Narrative Report/ALP Drawing Set
closed on May 10, 2024.  Consultant is collecting comments received during this time.

• Revisions have been made to the Draft Narrative Report to incorporate comments.
• Revisions have been made to the Draft ALP Drawing Set for airfield updates in advance of submittal

to the FAA.
• Consultant has pulled together documentation associated with Draft ALP package to submit to the

FAA.
• Consultant coordinating with Subconsultant (Arellano Associates) for close of advertising for general

public comment/review period.
Upcoming Action Items: 

• Ultimate coordination of draft ALP Drawing Set with the FAA.
• Upon FAA approval of the ALP Drawing Set, final documents associated with the ALP and Narrative

Report will be completed.
Project Percent Complete: The project is 89.4% complete through May 2024.  

CAMARILLO AIRPORT – PART 150 NOISE COMPATIBILITY STUDY 
Status Update: 

• Preparation of printed materials for Noise Compatibility Program Community Listening Session.
• Preparation of handouts and meeting invitations for Aviation and Land Use Technical Conferences.
• Revisions to Noise Exposure Map document in response to FAA comments.

Upcoming Action Items: 
• Conduct Noise Compatibility Program listening session and technical conferences in June 2024.
• Submit revised Noise Exposure Map document to FAA for review.

Project Percent Complete: The project is 46.9% complete through May 2024. 

OXNARD AIRPORT – PART 150 NOISE COMPATIBILITY STUDY 
Status Update: 

• Preparation of printed materials for Noise Compatibility Program Community Listening Session.
• Preparation of handouts and meeting invitations for Aviation and Land Use Technical Conferences.
• Revisions to Noise Exposure Map document in response to FAA comments.

Upcoming Action Items: 
• Conduct Noise Compatibility Program listening session and technical conferences in June 2024.
• Submit revised Noise Exposure Map document to FAA for review.

Project Percent Complete: The project is 49.6% complete through May 2024. 

94



ANNUAL CONSULTING SERVICES CONTRACT (AEA No. 24-01) 
Status Update: 

• Historic evaluation and CatEx for Oxnard Airport’s ATCT upgrades are ongoing. 
• CatEx and historic report plan to be submitted to airport staff for review in July. 

Upcoming Action Items: 
• Coordination as needed to follow-up previous items and assist with new items at the direction of 

Airport staff. 
Project Percent Complete: 21.7% of the not-to-exceed amount of $125,000 has been completed through 

May 2024.   

95



Woolpert, Inc. 

1300 Eastman Ave., Suite 214 

Ventura, CA 93003 

+1 303.524.3030

June 12, 2024 

Mrs. Erin Powers 

Projects Administrator 

County of Ventura Department of Airports 

555 Airport Way, Suite B 

Camarillo, CA 93010 

Re: Monthly Airport Project Status Update – May 2024 

Dear Mrs. Powers, 

Below is a summary of the tasks completed by Woolpert during the month of May 2024 for the Camarillo 

Airport: 

Conceptual Design for Runway/Taxiway Reconstruction (County Project No. AEA 22-10) 

• Throughout the month of May, the County and Woolpert discussed this project during coordination

meetings on May 3, 16, and 30, 2024.

• Upcoming:

 Continued coordination on this project with the County and FAA as needed.

 County to provide comments on the Conceptual Design package.

Final Design for Runway Reconstruction (AIP Project No. 3-06-0339-044-2024) 

• Throughout the month of May, the County and Woolpert discussed this project during coordination

meetings on May 3, 16, and 30, 2024.

• On May 1, 2024, the County provided Woolpert with the revised Financial Plan to incorporate into the

NOFO grant application for the full Runway and Taxiway Reconstruction project.

• On May 2, 2024, the County provided Woolpert with the latest CatEx status information.

• On May 2, 2024, Woolpert and the County held a meeting to discuss the NOFO grant application for

the full Runway and Taxiway Reconstruction project. The County submitted the NOFO grant

application to the FAA the same day before the deadline.

• On May 2, 2024, Woolpert provided the County with the revised SF-424 FY23 Supplementary

Discretionary Grant for the NOFO.

• On May 6, 2024, Woolpert provided responses to the County regarding the FAA questions about the

blast pad design width and length per the proposed D-III design standards.

• On May 7, 2024, the County requested an updated runway grant application and exhibit per the FAA

comments and a memo investigating the potential for something less than a full depth reconstruction.

Woolpert provided the County with two exhibits and the revised grant application project objective

for review on May 8, 2024. On May 13, 2024, Woolpert provided the requested draft memo and the

updated federal grant application and checklist to the County.

96



Woolpert, Inc. 

1300 Eastman Ave., Suite 214 

Ventura, CA 93003 

+1 303.524.3030 

• On May 13, 2024, the County requested an exhibit depicting a 30-degree high speed exit at Taxiway 

B. On May 22, 2024, Woolpert coordinated on several questions regarding the exhibit. Woolpert 

provided the exhibit to the County on May 23, 2024.  

• On May 16, 2024, Woolpert provided the runway rehabilitation cost estimate to the County.  

• On May 31, 2024, the County provided the FAA’s comments on the Scope of Work for Design Services 

to Woolpert and requested a revised exhibit based on the comments.  

• Upcoming:  

 Continued coordination on this project with the County as needed. 

 Woolpert to revise the exhibits for the federal grant application per FAA comments.  

 

Runway 8-26 and Taxiway A Pavement Improvements (County Project No. AEA 22-08) 

• Throughout the month of May, the County and Woolpert discussed this project during coordination 

meetings on May 3, 16, and 30, 2024. 

• On May 3, 2024, the County provided Woolpert with the Consulting Services Contract for Construction 

Administration services for signature. Woolpert signed the contract and provided it back to the County 

on May 7, 2024. The County provided Woolpert with the fully signed and executed contract on May 

8, 2024.  

• On May 8, 2024, the County, Woolpert, and Granite held a meeting to discuss proposed construction 

schedule for the upcoming project. Granite did not express any concerns with a construction start 

date the week of August 19, 2024.  

• Upcoming:  

 Continued coordination on this project with the County. 

 

Airport Pavement Management System (APMS) Update  

• Throughout the month of May, the County and Woolpert discussed this project during coordination 

meetings on May 3, 16, and 30, 2024. 

• Upcoming:  

 Woolpert will coordinate with subconsultants to assist with the completion of this project. 

 County to provide comments on Woolpert’s scope of work.  

 

If you have any comments, please do not hesitate to contact me. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Woolpert, Inc.  

 
Matt Gilbreath, P.E.  

Project Manager, Aviation  

 

cc:  Mr. Keith Freitas, Mr. Dave Nafie, Ms. Sujin Beck – County of Ventura Department of Airports 

Mr. Travis Vallin, Mr. JD Ingram, Mr. Jason Virzi, Mrs. Marisa Fluhr, Ms. Amanda Gross – Woolpert, 

Inc. 

File   

97



Woolpert, Inc. 

1300 Eastman Ave., Suite 214 

Ventura, CA 93003 

+1 303.524.3030

June 12, 2024 

Mrs. Erin Powers  

Projects Administrator 

County of Ventura Department of Airports 

555 Airport Way, Suite B 

Camarillo, CA 93010 

Re: Monthly Airport Project Status Update – May 2024 

Dear Mrs. Powers, 

Below is a summary of the tasks completed during the month of May 2024, by Woolpert and our 

subconsultants for the Oxnard Airport: 

AIP Project No. 03-06-0179-038-2021 – Runway 7-25 Reconstruction 

• Throughout the month of May, the County and Woolpert discussed this project during coordination

meetings on May 3, 16, and 30, 2024.

• Upcoming:

 Woolpert will continue project coordination with the County.

 County to provide the Sponsor items needed for the Construction Closeout Report.

 Woolpert will update the runway PCN value to a PCR value by September 30, 2024.

AIP Project No. 03-06-0179-042-2022 – Connector Taxiways A-E Reconstruction 

• Throughout the month of May, the County and Woolpert discussed this project during coordination

meetings on May 3, 16, and 30, 2024.

• On May 6, 2024, the County provided Woolpert with the maintenance work orders from Airport

Operations since the substantial completion date of the project to incorporate into the warranty

work letter response.

• On May 23 and 24, 2024, LimnoTech provided the revised soil stockpile final report to Woolpert to

forward to the County for review, which detailed the testing for per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances

(PFAS), Title 22 Metals, Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons, and Volatile Organic Compounds. The

revisions included adding a reference to Southern California background arsenic levels in nearby

counties and providing clarification and recommendations on soil disposal.

• On May 24, 2024, Woolpert responded to Granite’s response letter to the warranty request, which

included references to maintenance requests from Airport Operations since substantial completion

of the construction project and forwarded the correspondence to the County.

• On May 31, 2024, the County provided Woolpert with a copy of the Soil Management Plan approval

from the LA Waterboard to provide to LimnoTech for their report.

• Upcoming:

 Woolpert will continue project coordination with the County, FAA, and Granite as needed.

 FAA to sign the FAA version of Change Order No. 4.

98



Woolpert, Inc. 

1300 Eastman Ave., Suite 214 

Ventura, CA 93003 

+1 303.524.3030

 Woolpert to forward the revised soil stockpile report to the County once received from 

LimnoTech.  

 County to determine next steps following the review of soil stockpile testing results. 

AIP Project No. 03-06-0179-044/045-2023 – Taxiway A Reconstruction (Construction Management 

(CM)) 

• Throughout the month of May, the County and Woolpert discussed this project during coordination

meetings on May 3, 16, and 30, 2024.

• Throughout the month of May, Woolpert and Security Paving coordinated on submittal reviews,

Requests for Information (RFIs), payroll reviews, and proposed construction schedule. Woolpert also

submitting daily reports to the County for each day of monitoring construction activities.

• On May 1, 2024, Ninyo & Moore provide an updated exhibit of the boring locations for Taxiway A to

include in the Pre-Construction Waste Characterization Report.

• On May 2, 2024, Ninyo & Moore provided the revised Pre-Construction Waste Characterization

Report to the County and Woolpert detailing the results of the pavement bores along Taxiway A to

test for PFAS, Title 22 Metals, Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons (TPHs), and Volatile Organic

Compounds (VOCs). Ninyo & Moore provided the final report to the LA Waterboard on May 3, 2024.

On May 16 2024, Robert Medina with the LA Waterboard responded and provided one general

comment regarding applicable air board regulations that pertain to the soil that will be excavated

during the proposed reconstruction project.

• On May 2 and 3, 2024, Woolpert and the County coordinated with Security Paving on the SWPPP.

The SWPPP became active on May 9, 2024.

• On May 6, 2024, Woolpert provided the County with the draft Change Order No. 1 to haul all

unclassified excavation material offsite as non-hazardous material. A revised draft Change Order No.

1 was provided to the County on May 8, 2024.

• On May 6, 2024, Woolpert provided the County with the Taxiway A Vehicle Service Road (VSR)

Exhibits with one-way and two-way lane options for review.

• On May 6, 2024, Woolpert coordinated with the County regarding Security Paving’s request to

commence construction activities at 0600 rather than 0700 daily. The County rejected Security

Paving’s request.

• On May 7, 14, and 21, 2024, Woolpert conducted the weekly construction meetings for this project,

and it was attended by the County, FAA, Security Paving, and subcontractors for Security Paving. The

meeting minutes were sent out to all parties for their review and records after each meeting.

• On May 8 and 13, 2024, Woolpert coordinated with the County and Ninyo & Moore on the pickup

and disposal of the 55-gallon drum of soil cuttings generated during the soil investigation. The drum

was picked up and disposed of by Ninyo & Moore on May 15, 2024.

• On May 8, 2024, Woolpert followed up with the FAA regarding the FAA electrical handhole removal

and replacement in Schedule I, Phase 2. The FAA provided concurrence with the plan the same day

to keep the active electrical handholes in place and remove the abandoned electrical handhole.

• On May 8, 2024, Woolpert coordinated with the County on the draft directive to Security Paving to

proceed with disposal of unclassified excavation material off-site as non-hazardous material for

Schedule I, Phase 1. The directive was then sent to Security Paving the same day. This directive will

be reevaluated for each phase.

• On May 9, 2024, the day count for Schedule I, Phase 1 commenced for a total of 28 calendar days

and the ILS Glide Slope was turned off by the FAA for the duration of the phase.

99



Woolpert, Inc. 

1300 Eastman Ave., Suite 214 

Ventura, CA 93003 

+1 303.524.3030

• On May 10, 2024, Woolpert held the Quality Assurance/Quality Control Workshop with the

Contractor, subcontractors, Quality Assurance firm (NV5, Inc.) and Quality Control firm (G3 Quality,

Inc.) in attendance. The meeting minutes were sent to all parties in attendance the following day for

their review and records.

• On May 12 and 13, 2024, Woolpert, the County, and Airport Operations coordinated on the

placement of barricades and taxiway closure ‘X’s.

• On May 13, 2024, Woolpert provided Security Paving’s subcontractor contracts to the County for

their records.

• On May 14, 2024, Woolpert coordinated with the County on the pavement marking hold sign

stencils for Taxiway A4; the Oxnard Airport maintenance team confirmed that they have these

stencils and provided them to Woolpert.

• On May 15, 2024, Woolpert and the County held a meeting to coordinate on the obliteration of the

runway lead-in line for Taxiway A4.

• On May 15, 20, and 28, 2024, Woolpert submitted the Weekly Construction Progress and Inspection

Reports to the FAA and County.

• On May 16, 2024, Woolpert coordinated with the FAA and the County on the ASOS powerline that

was mistakenly cut by Security Paving during construction. The ASOS powerline was repaired on

May 21, 2024 and verified by the FAA on May 22, 2024.

• On May 17, 2024, Woolpert provided the County with the updated SEC FAA Form 6000-26 Airport

Sponsor Strategic Event Submission Form for the ILS Glide Slope shutdown during Schedule I, Phase

1 of the project. The County provided this form to the FAA for implementation.

• On May 17, 2024, Woolpert provided the County with an updated construction flyer detailing the

revised project start/end dates, project area, and closure durations for tenant and public

distribution.

• On May 20, 2024, Woolpert held the Pre-Pave Meeting, and it was attended by Security Paving, the

County, the Quality Acceptance firm (NV5, Inc.), and the Quality Control firm (G3 Quality, Inc.). The

meeting minutes were sent to all parties on May 23, 2024 for their review and records.

• On May 22, 2024, the County provided a response to Woolpert from the County Counsel on Security

Paving’s RFI regarding the sales and use tax. Woolpert forwarded the response to Security Paving

the same day as an RFI response transmittal.

• On May 23, 2024, the County confirmed the Oxnard Airport maintenance team can paint the

existing lead-in lines on Taxiway A4 black during Schedule I, Phase 2.

• On May 25 through 27, 2024, the project day count was halted for Memorial Day Weekend. The day

count resumed on May 28, 2024.

• On May 28, 2024, Contractor Pay Application No. 1 was sent out to all parties for signature.

• On May 28, 2024, the County forwarded concerns to Woolpert regarding the Security Paving gate

guard and smoking inside the fence. Woolpert forwarded these concerns to Security Paving and met

with the team onsite to discuss and rectify the issues.

• On May 29, 2024, Woolpert provided the County with Security Paving’s SW-2 County of Ventura

Stormwater Quality Management Program worksheet to update the project information section and

provide a signature. The County will complete the required inspections for the project.

• On May 29, 2024, Security Paving completed Control Strip No. 1 for P-401 Hot Mix Asphalt in a 2-

inch bottom lift consisting of 311 tons of material along the run-up area of Taxiway A; the control

strip passed gradation, asphalt content, VMA, joint density, and mat density per the specifications,

but the air voids were outside the acceptance tolerance. On May 30, 2024, the County and Woolpert

100



Woolpert, Inc. 

1300 Eastman Ave., Suite 214 

Ventura, CA 93003 

+1 303.524.3030 

discussed the potential to leave in place at no cost depending on the results of Control Strip No. 2. 

On May 31, 2024, Woolpert provided a transmittal letter to Security Paving detailing the plan to 

leave in place at no cost to the County or FAA if the next control strip passes acceptance criteria.  

• On May 29 and 30, 2024, Woolpert’s Project Manager and Deputy Project Manager completed a site 

visit to inspect the control strip and base course.  

• On May 30, 2024, Woolpert provided the County with the Contractor’s and Subcontractor’s payroll 

log for the first pay period.  

• On May 31, 2024, Security Paving completed Control Strip No. 2 for P-401 Hot Mix Asphalt in a 2-

inch bottom lift consisting of 262 tons of material adjacent to Control Strip No. 1; the control strip 

passed all acceptance criteria. Woolpert provided a control strip acceptance letter to Security Paving 

on June 1, 2024. On June 3, 2024, Woolpert provided a draft email to the County to send to the FAA 

detailing the plan to keep Control Strip No. 1 in place at no cost to the County or FAA.  

• Upcoming:  

 Woolpert will continue project coordination with the County, Security Paving, and Ninyo & Moore. 

 Woolpert and the County to coordinate on the results of the Pre-Construction Waste 

Characterization Report and issue a change order to balance excavation quantities.  

 Woolpert to draft the CCO for the REIL light replacement once costs are received from Royal 

Electric.  

 Woolpert to issue Field Directive No. 3 to paint back the obliterated Taxiway A4 runway lead-in 

line.  

 County to review VSR exhibits.  

 Construction Schedule I, Phase 2 is scheduled to begin on June 9, 2024.  

 Woolpert to issue a directive for the hauling of unclassified excavation material for Schedule I, 

Phase 2.  

 

AIP Project No. 03-06-0179-046-2023 – Reconstruction of Terminal and ARFF Apron (Design) 

• Throughout the month of May, the County and Woolpert discussed this project during coordination 

meetings on May 3, 16, and 30, 2024. 

• On May 10, 2024, the County accepted the Scope of Work and forwarded the scope to the FAA for 

review.  

• On May 23, 2024, Woolpert provided an updated Scope of Work to the County with minor revisions.  

• Upcoming:  

 FAA to review the Scope of Work for design services.  

 Woolpert to provide engineering fees and blank IFE spreadsheet once requested by the County.  

 

Air Traffic Control Tower (ATCT) Facility Assessment 

• On May 23, 2024, Coffman Associates (Coffman) and Woolpert coordinated on several documented 

CATEX questions regarding the project description, location of staging area and construction access 

route, and estimates of construction duration activity.  

• On May 28, 2024, Coffman and Woolpert coordinated on additional documented CATEX questions 

regarding asbestos testing.  

• Upcoming:  

 Woolpert will continue project coordination with the County. 

 

101



Woolpert, Inc. 

1300 Eastman Ave., Suite 214 

Ventura, CA 93003 

+1 303.524.3030

Airport Pavement Management System (APMS) Update 

• Throughout the month of May, the County and Woolpert discussed this project during coordination

meetings on May 3, 16, and 30, 2024.

• Upcoming:

 Woolpert will coordinate with subconsultants to assist with the completion of this project.

 County to provide comments on Woolpert’s scope of work.

If you have any comments, please do not hesitate to contact me. 

Sincerely, 

Woolpert, Inc. 

Matt Gilbreath, P.E.  

Project Manager, Aviation 

cc: Mr. Keith Freitas, Mr. Dave Nafie, Ms. Sujin Beck – County of Ventura Department of Airports 

Mr. Travis Vallin, Mr. JD Ingram, Mr. Jason Virzi, Mr. Mike Quinn, Mrs. Marisa Fluhr, Ms. 

Amanda Gross, Ms. Tracey Salazar – Woolpert, Inc.  

102



P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 S

T
A

T
U

S
 R

E
P

O
R

T

V
e

n
tu

ra
 C

o
u

n
ty

, D
e

p
a

rtm
e

n
t o

f A
irp

o
rts

P
re

p
a
re

d
 b

y
 M

e
a
d

 &
 H

u
n

t, In
c

R
e
v
is

io
n

 D
a
te

2
0
2
4
-0

6
-0

7

2
2
0
6
9
0
0
-2

2
1
8
3
3
.0

1

A
E

A
 2

3
-0

3

A
IP

 - N
/A

C
M

A
 &

 O
X

R

D
E

S
IG

N
  S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

O
N

-C
A

L
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 (2

0
2
2
-2

0
2
3
)

O
n
-c

a
ll s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

t th
e
 re

q
u
e
s
t o

f th
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

.  P
e
rio

d
 is

 

e
ffe

c
tiv

e
 th

ro
u
g
h
 J

u
n
e
 3

0
, 2

0
2
3
.

a
)  C

o
n
tra

c
t e

x
e
c
u
te

d
.

b
) M

e
a
d
 &

 H
u
n
t fin

a
liz

e
d
 a

n
d
 s

u
b
m

itte
d
 b

e
a
c
o
n
 s

tu
d
y
 a

t C
M

A
.

c
)  B

a
s
e
 P

a
rt 2

6
 D

B
E

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 C

o
n
s
u
lta

tio
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
, g

o
a
ls

 c
o
m

p
u
te

d
 

a
n
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
, a

n
d
 p

u
b
lic

 n
o
tic

e
 o

f g
o
a
ls

 u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
 fo

r C
o
u
n
ty

 to
 p

o
s
t fo

r 

3
0
-d

a
y
 re

v
ie

w
 p

e
rio

d
 (M

e
a
d
 &

 H
u
n
t p

ro
v
id

e
d
 M

a
y
 3

0
th

).

d
) M

e
a
d
 &

 H
u
n
t a

s
s
is

tin
g
 th

e
 W

in
g
s
 O

v
e
r C

a
m

a
rillo

 te
a
m

 w
ith

 g
ra

p
h
ic

s
; 

d
ra

ft g
ra

p
h
ic

s
 s

u
b
m

itte
d
 to

 A
ir S

h
o
w

 s
ta

ff.

e
) M

e
a
d
 &

 H
u
n
t p

re
p
a
re

d
 fin

a
l O

X
R

 a
n
d
 C

M
A

 S
W

P
P

P
 m

a
p
p
in

g
 fo

r 

C
o
u
n
ty

 s
u
b
m

is
s
io

n
.

f)  M
e
a
d
 &

 H
u
n
t fin

a
l d

e
s
ig

n
 fo

r C
M

A
 b

e
a
c
o
n
: M

e
a
d
 a

n
d
 H

u
n
t p

ro
v
id

e
d
 

a
n
d
 p

o
s
te

d
 b

id
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

tio
n
. B

id
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 b

e
g
a
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 1

4
, w

ith
 

b
id

s
 d

u
e
 O

c
to

b
e
r 3

rd
, 2

0
2
3
. 

g
)  M

e
a
d
 &

 H
u
n
t a

s
s
is

te
d
 w

ith
 g

ra
n
t c

lo
s
e
o
u
t d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

tio
n
 fo

r C
M

A
 

A
IP

 -0
3
7
 a

n
d
 O

X
R

 A
IP

 - 0
3
7
.

6
0
%

a
) N

o
n
e

2
2
0
6
9
0
0
-2

2
1
9
5
8
.0

1

C
T

 5
0
2
0
F

Y
2
3
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
2
2

A
IP

 - N
/A

C
M

A
 &

 O
X

R

D
E

S
IG

N
  S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 A
G

E
N

C
Y

 P
U

R
C

H
A

S
E

 O
R

D
E

R
 (2

0
2
2
-

2
0
2
3
)

O
n
-c

a
ll s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

t th
e
 re

q
u
e
s
t o

f th
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

.  P
e
rio

d
 is

 

e
ffe

c
tiv

e
 th

ro
u
g
h
 J

u
n
e
 3

0
, 2

0
2
3
.

a
)  F

u
lly

 e
x
e
c
u
te

d
 c

o
n
tra

c
t re

c
e
iv

e
d
.

b
)  M

e
a
d
 &

 H
u
n
t s

u
b
m

itte
d
 fin

a
l p

la
n
 fo

r p
e
rim

e
te

r ro
a
d
 a

lig
n
m

e
n
t.

c
)  M

e
a
d
 &

 H
u
n
t p

re
p
a
re

d
 le

a
s
e
h
o
ld

 g
ra

p
h
ic

 fo
r O

X
R

 a
n
d
 C

M
A

.

d
)  M

e
a
d
 &

 H
u
n
t to

 a
s
s
is

t th
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 w
ith

 le
a
s
e
 g

ra
p
h
ic

s
 a

n
d
 le

a
s
e
 a

re
a
 

c
a
lc

u
la

tio
n
s
 fo

r A
irp

o
rt P

ro
p
e
rtie

s
 L

im
ite

d
.

3
7
%

a
)  N

o
n
e

2
2
0
6
9
0
0
-2

2
1
9
5
8
.0

2

C
T

 5
0
2
0
F

Y
2
4
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
2
2

A
IP

 - N
/A

C
M

A
 &

 O
X

R

D
E

S
IG

N
  S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 A
G

E
N

C
Y

 P
U

R
C

H
A

S
E

 O
R

D
E

R
 (2

0
2
3
-

2
0
2
4
)

O
n
-c

a
ll s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

t th
e
 re

q
u
e
s
t o

f th
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

.  P
e
rio

d
 is

 

e
ffe

c
tiv

e
 fro

m
 J

u
ly

 1
, 2

0
2
3
 th

ro
u
g
h
 J

u
n
e
 3

0
, 2

0
2
4
.

a
)  F

u
lly

 e
x
e
c
u
te

d
 c

o
n
tra

c
t re

c
e
iv

e
d
.

0
%

a
)  N

o
n
e

A
c
tio

n
 Ite

m
D

e
s
c
rip

tio
n

A
irp

o
rt

M
e
a
d

 &
 H

u
n

t N
o

. 

C
o

u
n

ty
  N

o
.

G
ra

n
t N

o
.

S
ta

tu
s

P
e
rc

e
n

t 

C
o

m
p

le
te

X
:\2

2
0
6
9
0
0
\R

E
F

\M
u
lti-P

ro
je

c
t M

e
e
tin

g
 N

o
te

s
\V

e
n
tu

ra
 C

o
u
n
ty

_
P

ro
je

c
t_

S
ta

tu
s
_
R

e
p
o
rt_

0
5
-3

1
-2

4

103



AIRPORT TENANT 
PROJECT STATUS 

July 2024 
 

CAMARILLO   
  

 Airport Properties Limited (APL) Row I project:  All permits received and 
construction underway. 
 

OXNARD 
 

 5 and 7 acre RFP parcel developments concepts under discussion, preliminary 
concept phase and lease negotiation in progress. 
 

OTHER 
 

 None   

104



Project R
eports-M

onthly\Faa Proj. R
eport.doc 

C
O

U
N

TY O
F VENTU

R
A

 
D

EPA
R

TM
ENT O

F A
IR

PO
R

TS 
June 2024 

 
 

 
 

 
FA

A
 G

R
A

N
T PR

O
JEC

TS 

Sup. 
D

ist. 
Project N

am
e 

Spec. N
um

ber 
Estim

ate 
Low

 B
id 

C
C

O
’s 

C
laim

s 
D

esign 
Engr. 

C
ontractor 

Estim
ated Schedule or A

ctual D
ates 

%
 C

om
pl 

D
esign/ 

C
onst. 

 
R

em
arks 

B
id 

D
ate 

C
ontract 
A

w
ard 

C
onst 

Start 
C

onst 
C

om
p 

 5 
 C

M
A Airport Layout 

Plan U
pdate 

 
$686,032 

 

 
 

C
offm

an 
Associates 

 
N

/A 
 

9/24/20 
 

9/30/20 
 

5/31/24 
 95  

The 
Airport 

received 
FAA 

approval 
to 

transition 
the 

M
aster 

Plan 
to 

an 
Airport 

Layout Plan (ALP) U
pdate to 

allow
 

for 
com

m
unity 

concerns, like noise, to be 
addressed, 

w
ith 

a 
m

aster 
plan update to be revisited in 
a future year, should it be 
w

arranted. 
 

Second 
ALP 

w
orkshop 

m
eeting 

held 
N

ovem
ber 14

th, 2023.  Final 
ALP w

orkshop w
as held on 

February 20, 2024. The ALP 
docum

ent w
as distributed for 

public 
com

m
ents 

through 
M

ay 10 .  C
om

m
ents to be 

review
ed prior to subm

itting 
Final ALP to the FAA by M

ay 
31, 2024. 

 5 
 C

M
A C

onceptual 
D

esign for 2025 
R

W
Y and TW

Y 
R

econstruction 

 
$187,260 

 

 
 

W
oolpert 

 
N

/A 
 

9/19/22 
 

N
/A 

 
N

/A 
 90 

The 
Airport 

executed 
a 

contract for the conceptual 
design and coordinated w

ith 
consultants 

to 
provide 

the 
FAA a C

atEx docum
ent on 

the 
future 

project. 
FAA 

provided feedback on design 
std 

requirem
ents 

and 
consultant w

ill provide draft 
docs. Additionally, the Airport 
subm

itted a M
odification to 

Standard (M
oS) request 

to 
address 

phasing/funding 
concerns. The M

oS w
as not 

accepted, current standards 
confirm

ed 
need 

to 
be 

m
et 

(crow
n). 

FAA 
requested 

N
O

FO
 grant application w

as 
subm

itted 
to 

FAA. 
FAA 

105



Project R
eports-M

onthly\Faa Proj. R
eport.doc 

Sup. 
D

ist. 
Project N

am
e 

Spec. N
um

ber 
Estim

ate 
Low

 B
id 

C
C

O
’s 

C
laim

s 
D

esign 
Engr. 

C
ontractor 

Estim
ated Schedule or A

ctual D
ates 

%
 C

om
pl 

D
esign/ 

C
onst. 

R
em

arks 
B

id 
D

ate 
C

ontract 
A

w
ard 

C
onst 

Start 
C

onst 
C

om
p 

follow
ed up w

ith request for 
FY2023 

Supplem
entary 

D
iscretionary 

G
rant 

for 
the 

N
O

FO
. The Supplem

entary 
D

iscretionary 
G

rant 
w

as 
subm

itted. 
FAA 

has 
requested 

an 
updated 

runw
ay 

grant 
per 

FAA 
com

m
ents 

and 
m

em
o 

to 
investigate 

full 
depth 

reconstruction. 

5 
C

M
A Part 150 

N
oise C

om
patibility 

Study 

$770,943 
C

offm
an 

Associates 
N

/A 
9/30/22 

N
/A 

N
/A 

46.1 
FAA 

aviation 
forecast 

approval has allow
ed for next 

chapter developm
ent for the 

N
oise Exposure M

ap (N
EM

) 
elem

ent of the study .  The 
draft noise contour m

aps and 
noise im

pact chapters w
ere 

shared w
ith the PAC

 and w
ith 

the public at a public m
eeting 

on 
Septem

ber 
26

th 
and 

com
m

ents 
received 

by 
O

ctober 15
th helped inform

 
the study if any adjustm

ents 
to 

the 
draft 

chapters 
w

ere 
required.  The N

EM
s w

ere 
then subm

itted to the FAA for 
approval in D

ecem
ber.  FAA 

com
m

ents 
have 

been 
received and updates m

ade 
to 

the 
report 

for 
resubm

ission. In support of 
the N

oise C
om

patibility Plan 
(N

C
P) portion of the study 

preparations are being m
ade 

for 
the 

upcom
ing 

listening 
and 

technical 
sessions 

for 
June 3, 2024.  

106



Project R
eports-M

onthly\Faa Proj. R
eport.doc 

Sup. 
D

ist. 
Project N

am
e 

Spec. N
um

ber 
Estim

ate 
Low

 B
id 

C
C

O
’s 

C
laim

s 
D

esign 
Engr. 

C
ontractor 

Estim
ated Schedule or A

ctual D
ates 

%
 C

om
pl 

D
esign/ 

C
onst. 

R
em

arks 
B

id 
D

ate 
C

ontract 
A

w
ard 

C
onst 

Start 
C

onst 
C

om
p 

3 
O

XR
 R

W
Y & TW

Y 
C

onnector 
Transitions 
R

econstruction 

$12,832,636 
$12,274,001 

$124,90
6 

M
ead H

unt 
Sully-M

iller 
Inc. 

4/29/2
1 

7/20/21 
7/23/21 

2/28/22 
100 
99 

Final 
project 

closeout 
underw

ay.  

3 
O

XR
 TW

Y A-E 
C

onnector 
R

econstruction 

$335,960 
7,706,536 

W
oolpert 

G
ranite 

C
onstructio

n 

4/26/2
2 

12/17/21 
TBD

 
4/3/23 

9/13/23 
100 
95 

C
onstruction 

com
pleted 

in 
Septem

ber 
2023. 

 
Project 

closeout item
s rem

ain. Final 
draft report of the soil report 
subm

itted 
to 

D
O

A. 
D

O
A 

provided W
oolpert w

ith the 
Soil 

M
anagem

ent 
Plan 

approval 
from

 
LA 

R
W

Q
B. 

W
arranty 

Letter 
has 

been 
sent to G

ranite to address 
several

m
aintenance

requests 
since 

substantial 
com

pletion of the project. 

3 
O

XR
 TW

Y 
C

onnector 
R

econstruction 
C

onstruction 
M

anagem
ent 

Services 

$674,799 
W

oolpert 
N

/A 
12/21/21 

4/3/23 
8/15/23 

95 
C

onstruction began April 3, 
2023.  Project w

as com
pleted 

in Septem
ber 2023.  Jviation 

w
ill be w

orking on final project 
and grant closeout item

s. 

3 
O

XR
 TW

Y F (A) 
R

econstruction 
$16,142,731 
$17,365,010 

W
oolpert 

Security 
Paving 

6/27/2
3 

10/20/23 
TBD

 
TBD

 
100 
15 

C
ontract aw

arded to Security 
Paving and pre-construction 
w

aste characterization report 
shared w

ith the W
ater Board 

prior to construction start on 
M

ay 9, 
2024. 

 The 
report 

determ
ined 

that 
the 

soil 
w

ould be disposed of offsite 
appropriately. 

Asphalt 
C

ontrol 
Stripe 

#1 
failed. 

Asphalt 
C

ontrol 
Strip 

#2 
passed testing. Phase 1 is 
com

plete. 
SP 

has 
started 

Phase 2, w
hich is scheduled 

to 
be 

com
pleted 

by 
the 

m
iddle 

of 
July. 

First 
pay 

application 
has 

been 

107



Project R
eports-M

onthly\Faa Proj. R
eport.doc 

Sup. 
D

ist. 
Project N

am
e 

Spec. N
um

ber 
Estim

ate 
Low

 B
id 

C
C

O
’s 

C
laim

s 
D

esign 
Engr. 

C
ontractor 

Estim
ated Schedule or A

ctual D
ates 

%
 C

om
pl 

D
esign/ 

C
onst. 

R
em

arks 
B

id 
D

ate 
C

ontract 
A

w
ard 

C
onst 

Start 
C

onst 
C

om
p 

subm
itted 

to 
C

ounty 
and 

electronically funded to SP. 
Pay App #2 is currently being 
processed. 

3 
O

XR
 Part 150 

N
oise C

om
patibility 

Study 

$770,943 
C

offm
an 

Associates 
N

/A 
9/30/22 

N
/A 

N
/A 

48.7 
FAA 

aviation 
forecast 

approval has allow
ed for next 

chapter developm
ent for the 

N
oise Exposure M

ap (N
EM

) 
elem

ent of the study.  The 
draft noise contour m

aps and 
noise im

pact chapters w
ere 

shared w
ith the PAC

 and w
ith 

the public at a public m
eeting 

on 
Septem

ber 
25

th. 
and 

com
m

ents 
received 

by 
O

ctober 15
th helped inform

 
the study if any adjustm

ents 
to 

the 
draft 

chapters 
w

ere 
required.  The N

EM
s w

ere 
then subm

itted to the FAA for 
approval in D

ecem
ber.  FAA 

com
m

ents 
have 

been 
received and updates m

ade 
to 

the 
report 

for 
resubm

ission. In support of 
the N

oise C
om

patibility Plan 
(N

C
P) portion of the study 

preparations are being m
ade 

for 
the 

upcom
ing 

listening 
and 

technical 
sessions 

for 
June 4, 2024.   

N
ote:  Shaded boxes indicate changes from

 previous m
onth 

C
M

A
 – C

am
arillo A

irport 
O

X
R

 – O
xnard A

irport 
TB

D
 – To be determ

ined 
C

C
O

 – C
ontract C

hange O
rders 

108



Project R
eports-M

onthly\N
on G

rant Proj. Report.doc 

C
O

U
N

TY O
F VENTU

R
A

 
D

EPA
R

TM
ENT O

F A
IR

PO
R

TS 
June 2024 

N
O

N
-G

R
A

N
T PR

O
JEC

TS 

Sup. 
D

ist. 
Project N

am
e 

Spec. N
um

ber 

Estim
ate 

Low
 B

id 
C

C
O

’s 
C

laim
s 

D
esign Engr. 
C

ontractor 

Scheduled or A
ctual D

ates 
%

 
C

om
pl 

D
esign

/ 
C

onst. 

R
em

arks 
B

id 
D

ate 
C

ontract 
A

w
ard 

C
onst 

Start 
C

onst 
C

om
p 

5 
C

M
A R

W
Y C

enterline 
and TW

Y Alpha 
R

epair 

116,505 
W

oolpert 
9/13/22 

TBD
 

TBD
 

100 
C

onstruction contract 
approved by the Board and 
executed. Additional project 
coordination underw

ay. N
TP to 

G
ranite sent on 6/14/2024 w

ith 
construction to start the w

eek 
of August 19, 2024. 

5 
C

M
A Beacon Siting 

Study and R
elocation 

D
esign 

8,500 
52,544 

M
ead & H

unt 
N

/A 
O

n-call 
N

/A 
N

/A 
100 
100 

Beacon siting study initiated 
due to developer purchase of 
C

M
A W

ater Tow
er and 

adjacent property.  Project bids 
w

ere due O
ctober 3, 2023. 

O
ne bid w

as received, 
rejection of the bid w

as 
approved by the Board of 
Supervisors. Pricing has been 
subm

itted and D
O

A is currently 
w

orking w
ith M

&H
 to obtain the 

appropriate perm
its to start 

construction. . 

3 
O

XR
 PFAS 

Supplem
ental 

Plan/Sam
pling & 

M
onitoring 

$6,500 
137,000 

$226,018 
N

inyo & 
M

oore 
N

/A 
1/19/21 

N
/A 

3/29/21 
100 
90 

The C
A State W

ater Board 
requires Part 139 Airports that 
have discharged firefighting 
foam

 to develop a w
ork plan 

and perform
 testing to assist in 

the State’s PFAS investigation.  
C

oordination w
ith the State 

W
ater Board to satisfy 

w
orkplan and 

sam
pling/m

onitoring goals 
continues. This w

ork is 
separate from

 project-related 
testing. 

N
ote:  Shaded boxes indicate changes from

 previous m
onth 

109



Project R
eports-M

onthly\N
on G

rant Proj. Report.doc 

C
M

A
 – C

am
arillo A

irport 
O

X
R

 – O
xnard A

irport 
TB

D
 – To be determ

ined 
C

C
O

 – C
ontract C

hange O
rders 

C
U

E – C
am

arillo U
tility Enterprise 

110



CMA Camarillo Airport | OXR Oxnard Airport 

2024 Meeting Schedules 

Camarillo & Oxnard 
Airport Authorities 

The Camarillo & Oxnard Airport 
Authorities meet jointly on the second 
Thursday of the month at 6:30 p.m. in 
the Department of Airports 
Administration Office, 555 Airport Way, 
Suite B, Camarillo, CA 93010, unless 
otherwise noted on the agenda. Changes 
or cancellations may occur. 

January 11 

February 8 

March 14 

April 11 

May 9 

June 13

July 11 

August 8

September 12 

October 10 

November 14 

December 12 

Aviation Advisory 
Commission

The Aviation Advisory Commission meets 
on the Wednesday preceding the second 
Thursday of the month at 6:30 p.m. in the 
Department of Airports Administration 
Office, 555 Airport Way, Suite B, Camarillo, 
CA 93010, unless otherwise noted on the 
agenda. Changes or cancellations may 
occur.

January 10 

March 13 

April 10 

February 7

May 8

June 12

July 10

August 7

September 11

October 9

November 13

December 11

CANCELED CANCELED

CANCELED

CANCELED

CANCELED

111



112



113



114



Department of Airports News dated: June 17, 2024

115



116



Department of Airports News dated: June 21, 2024

117


	ADP7B89.tmp
	No changes to the agenda.
	Recommendation:
	B. Subject: Authorization for the Director of Airports or His Designee to Award Four (4) Annual Consulting Services Contracts for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 to Assist the Department of Airports with the Following Services:  Engineering, Environmental Revie...
	Recommendations:
	Recommendation:


	ADPF203.tmp
	555 Airport Way, Suite B
	Recommendation:


	ADP24BD.tmp
	Recommendation:

	ADP565E.tmp
	555 Airport Way, Suite B
	Recommendation:


	ADP86C7.tmp
	Recommendation:
	Receive and file staff update regarding the installation of a new video surveillance and access control system at Camarillo and Oxnard Airports.
	Discussion:

	ADPB52C.tmp
	555 Airport Way, Suite B
	Recommendation:


	All Reports.pdf
	11. 2024 Meeting Calendar - rev. 5.1.24.pdf
	Blank Page

	ADPCDF1.tmp
	Estimate
	CCO’s
	Scheduled or Actual Dates


	ADPFD5F.tmp
	CCO’s
	Estimated Schedule or Actual Dates

	Estimate
	Coffman Associates
	Security Paving
	Coffman Associates


	ADP6084.tmp
	No changes to the agenda.
	Recommendation:
	B. Subject: Authorization for the Director of Airports or His Designee to Award Four (4) Annual Consulting Services Contracts for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 to Assist the Department of Airports with the Following Services:  Engineering, Environmental Revie...
	Recommendations:
	Recommendation:


	ADPC962.tmp
	Recommendation:

	ADPFAF4.tmp
	555 Airport Way, Suite B
	Recommendation:


	ADP2BF9.tmp
	Recommendation:
	Receive and file staff update regarding the installation of a new video surveillance and access control system at Camarillo and Oxnard Airports.
	Discussion:

	ADP5A9C.tmp
	555 Airport Way, Suite B
	Recommendation:





